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FILED
IN CLERK'S
US. DiSTRICT co?Jll:?FT'tcz'.ED.Nx

K DEC27wv %
UNITES STATES DISTRICT COURT

EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK LONG ISLAND OFFicE
X
Julie Somerset, individually and
on behalf of all others similarly L. Docket No.
situated Plamn@
-against- v ‘ﬁ 7 P? 5 3 9
COMPLAINT AND DEMAND
Stephen Einstein & Associates, P.C. Defendants FOR JURY TRIAL
and Stephen Einstein Unlawful Debt Collection Practices
. TRIAL BY JURY DEMANDED
SPATT, J.
LINDSAY, M.J.

1. CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT

Plaintiff, JULIE SOMERSET, individually and on behalf of all others similarly
situated, brings this action under the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act, 15 U.S.C. Section
1692, et seq. (“FDCPA”), and the New York General Business law (GBL) against the

Defendants to recover damages by reason of Defendants’ violations of law, and alleges:

1I. JURISDICTION AND VENUE
1. Jurisdiction of this Court arises under 15 U.S.C Section 1692k (d), 28 U.S.C
Section 1337. The Court has supplemental jurisdiction related to the GBL claims pursuant
to 28 U.S.C. Section 1367. Venue in this District is proper in that the Defendants transact

business here and the conduct complained of occurred here.
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IIL. PARTIES

2. Plaintiff, JULIE SOMERSET, is a citizen of the State of New York, residing in
the Eastern District of New York, from whom Defendant attempted to collect 2 consumer
debt allegedly owed by Plaintiff.

3. Defendant Stephen Einstein & Associates, P.C. (“Einstein, P.C”)is a
professional corporation doing business in New York State. The principal purpose of
Defendant is the collection of debts using the mails and telephone, and Defendant regularly
attempts to collect debts alleged to be due another.

4. Defendant Stephen Einstein (hereinafter, “Einstein”) is an attorney and principal
of Einstein P.C. The principal purpose of Defendant is the collection of debts using the
mails and telephone, and Defendant regularly attempts to collect debts alleged to be due
another.

5. Defendants are "debt collectors” as defined by the FDCPA, 15 U.S.C. Section
1692a(6).

6. The alleged debt Defendant sought to collect from Plaintiff is a consumer debt,
as defined by §1692a(5) of the FDCPA, in that it was originally incurred for personal,

family or household purposes. The original debt was a consumer credit card.

IV. FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS
7. At all times herein relevant, Plaintiff was and is a “consumer™ as defined by 15

USC 1692a(3).
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8. At all times herein relevant, Defendants are “debt collectors” as that term is
defined by 15 USC 1692a(6).

9. On or about January 10, 2017, Defendants drafted and mailed an “Income
Execution” directed to the Plaintiff’s employer and forwarded to Plaintiff (Attached as
Exhibit A).

10. Exhibit A does not contain the language required by 15 USC 1692e(11).

11. Exhibit A does not contain the language required by 15 USC 1692g(a).

12. Exhibit A falsely indicates that there is a valid judgement against the Plaintiff
from a company called Rushmore Recoveries X, LLC.

13. The alleged judgment was obtained without serving the Plaintiff.

14. Plaintiff was never served with notice of the underlying lawsuit that led to the
alleged judgement.

15. On information and belief, the underlying judgement should have been vacated
for improper service under the litigation in Sykes v. Mel S. Harris Fisher et al. v. Leucadia
National Corp. et al., No. 452328/2016 (Sup. Ct. N.Y. Cty.). To the extent that such
judgement should have been vacated, Plaintiff asserts an additional cause of action for the
Defendant’s attempt to collect such improper judgement. Any attempt to enforce an
improper judgement is a violation of 15 USC 1692¢, 1692e(5), 1692¢(10), 1692f, and
1692f (1).

16. On information and belief, no attorney meaningfully reviewed the file or
income execution prior to serving such. A basic review of such would have indicated that
the notices required by 15 USC 1692¢(11) and 15 USC 1692g(a) were not on the

documents. As Exhibit A indicates that the document was from an attorney, Exhibit A is
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false and deceptive in that no attorney meaningfully reviewed the file prior to the
document being served. Defendants’ actions in this regard violate 15 USC 1692¢; 15 USC

1692¢(3); and 15 USC 1692¢(10).

V. VIOLATIONS OF THE FDCPA

17. The actions of the Defendant as described above were false, deceptive, and
unconscionable and unfair. Defendants’ actions violate 15 USC 1692 e; 15 USC 1692 e(2);
15 USC 1692 e(3) 15 USC 1692 e(5); 15 USC 1692 e(10); 15 USC 1692 f(1); 15 USC

1692g(a) and 15 USC 1692 f(6)(A).

VI. CLASS ALLEGATIONS

18.  Plaintiff brings the following Count on behalf of herself and a Class. The
Class consists of all consumers residing in the State of New York who, according to
Defendants’ records received an income execution materially identical or substantially
similar to Exhibit A.

19. The claims asserted in this case satisfy the requirements of Rule 23(a) because:

(A) The members of the class are so numerous that joinder of all
members is impractical.

(B)  There are questions of law and fact common to the Class and these
questions predominate over any questions affecting only individual
Class members.

(C)  The only individual issue is the identification of the consumers who
were the target of an income execution issued by Defendants
materially identical or substantially similar to Exhibit A (i.e., the
Class members), a matter capable of ministerial determination from
the Defendants’ records.
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(D) The Plaintiff’s claims are typical of those of the Class members.
All are based on the same facts and legal theories.

(E)  Plaintiff will fairly and adequately represent the Class members’
interests. Plaintiff has retained counsel experienced in bringing class
actions and collection-abuse claims. Plaintiffs’ interests are
consistent with those of the Class members.

20.  Class action treatment is appropriate under Rule 23(b)(3) because questions
of fact or law common to the members of the Class predominate over any questions
affecting only individual members and a class action is superior to other available methods
for the fair and efficient adjudication of the Class members’ claims.

21.  Congress specifically envisions class actions as a principal means of
enforcing the FDCPA. See 15 U.S.C. §1692k.

22.  The members of the Class are generally unsophisticated consumers, whose
rights will not be vindicated in the absence of a class action.

23.  Prosecution of separate actions by individual Class members would create
the risk of inconsistent or varying adjudications, resulting in the establishment of
inconsistent or varying standards for the parties, and would not be in the interest of judicial
economy.

24.  Ifthe facts are discovered to be appropriate, Plaintiffs will seek to certify
the Class under Rule 23(b)(3) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.

25. Plaintiff brings this case, individually, and on behalf of a class that,
according to Defendant’s records, consists of: (a) all individuals who have mailing

addresses within the United States; and (b) within one year before the filing of this action;

(c) were the subject of an income execution in a form materially identical or substantially
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similar to Exhibit A attached to Plaintiff’s Complaint; (d) which was not returned by the
postal service as undeliverable.

26. To the extent that the evidence shows that the Defendant is collecting
judgements that should have been vacated under the litigation in the Sykes matter, Plaintiff
will additionally seek to form a class consisting of such victims. The class members are
entitled to damages under the FDCPA, as well as the New York General Business law

Section 349.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff asks that this Court enter judgment in his favor and on
behalf of the Class, against Defendants as follows:

(A)  Certify the proposed the Class under Rule 23 of the Federal Rules of Civil
Procedure and appoint Plaintiff and his counsel to represent the Class;

(B) Statutory damages;
(C)  Actual damages;

(D)  Attorney’s fees, litigation expenses and costs incurred in bringing this
action;

(E)  Any other relief this Court deems appropriate and just under the
circumstances.
DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL
Please take notice that Plaintiff demands trial by jury in this action.

Dated: West Islip, NY
December 26, 2017

Respectfully submitte

/S/ JOSEPH MAURO
Joseph Mauro (JM: 829
Plaintiff’s Attorney
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EXHIBIT A
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Supreme Court of the State of New York; County of SUFFOLK INDEX NO. SMC7641/05

INCOME EXECUTION

JUDGMENT CREDITOR(s)
RAWSHMORE RECOVERIES X.LLC

The people of the state of New York

JUDGMENT DEBTOR[S] Name and Last Known Address
JULIE A SOMERSET

17 OAK PL

SELDEN, NY 11784

TO THE ENFORCEMENT OFFICER, GREETING: The enforcement Officer is the Sheriff, Marshal of the City or Constable of the Town or Village
authorized by law to enforce Income Executions. A judgment was entered in the within court in favor of the judgment creditor and the
particulars are as foilows:

Court of Oringal Entry
DISTRICT COURT OF THE COUNTY OF SUFFOLK. FOURTH DISTRICT HAUPPAUGE PART

sudgment Date  Judgment Amount Judgment Amount UNPAID
19/16/2005 $1,219.61 $1219.61 plus interest from 09/16/2005

The Judgment was recovered against JULIE A SOMERSET , ranscripted with the Clerk of SUFFOLXK County on 03/08/2012. This Execution
s 1ssued against JULIE A SOMERSET whose last known address is 17 OAK PL , SELDEN, NY 11784 whose Social Security Number is
WOSEREPand who is receiving or will receive $§320.00 for each weekly pay period from the Employer. “Employer” herein includes any
payor of money to Judgment Debtor. The Employer's names and address is:

Employer: KOHL'S DEPARTMENT STORES
Payroll Address:

N56 W 17000 RIDGEWOOD DR

MENOMONEE FALLS Wi 53051

1262)703-2861

New York Address

409 COMMACK RD
DEER PARK, NY 11729
{631)242-2800

You are directed to satisly the judgment with interest together with your fees and expenses. out of all monies now and hereatter due and owing to the
Judgment Debtor from the Employer pursuant to CPLR SUB .SEC 5231.

Directions to Judgment Debtor: You are notified and commanded immediately to start paying to the Enforcement Officer serving a capy of this INCOME
EXECUTION on you: installments amounting to 10% (but no more than the Federal limits set forth in 1. Limitations on the amount that can be withheld
below) of any and all salary, wages or other income. including any and ajl overtime eamings.. commissions or other irregular compensation received or
hereafter to be received from your Employer and to continue paying such installments until the judgment with interest and the fees and expenses of this Income
Execulion are fully paid and satisfied and if you fail to do so within 20 days this Income Execution will be served upon the Employer by the Enforcement
Oficer.

Directions to the Employer: You are commanded to withhold and pay over 1o the Enforcement Officer serving a copy of this INCOME EXECUTION on you:
instaliments amounting fo 10% (but no more than the Federal limits set forih in 1. Limitations on the amount that can be withhetd, below) of any and all
sajary. wages or other income inctuding any and all overtime earnings. commissions or other irreguias compensalion now o hersalter becoming due io
Judgment Debtor until the judgment with interest and the fees and expenses of this INCOME EXECUTION are tully paid and satistied.

l":(? 4_—{ . : - (o DO
DATED: 01/10/2017 ¢ Cla O o .
Attorney(s) for Judgment Creditor Stephen Einstein )
Stephen Einstein & Associates, P.C.
Dfice and Past Office Address 39 Broadway. Suite 1250. New York, NY 10006
Telephone: 212-267-3550

IMPORTANT STATEMENT: This income Execution directs the withholding of up to 10 percent of the judgment deblor’s gross income. In certain
-ases. nowever, state or federal law does not permit the withholding of that much of the judgment debtor's gross income. The judgment debtor is referred to
-he New York Civil Practice Law and Rules Sec. 5231 and 15 United States Code Sec. 1671 et seq.

1. Limitations on the amount that can be withheld

A. Anincome execution for instaliments from a judgment deblor’s gross income cannot exceed (10%) of the judgment debtor’s gross income.

B. i ajudgment debtor's weekly disposable earnings are less than the greater of thirty (30) times the current federal minimum wage {$7.25" per hour. or
$217.50°). the New York State minimum wage (§9.70"" per hour. or $291.00°). the New York State minimum wage ($9.70°" per hour, or $291.00°°). the New
York City minimum wage for employers with 10 or less employees ($10.50°" per hour. or $315.00°*): the New Yark City minimum wage for employers with
more than 10 employees {$11.60°* per hour. or $330.00°*): the minimum wage for Nassau. Sufiolk and Wesichester Counties (§10.00°**, per hour, or
$300.00°**). the New York State minimum wage for fast food employees outside New York City ($10.75# per hour, or §322.50#), or the New York State
minimum wage for fast food employees located in New York City (512.50" per hour. or $375.00%)

546113-1/4621201161710400/XXKXXXXXXKXXO400/RR 10 A M L
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C. A judgment debtor's weekly disposable earnings cannot be reduced below the amount arrived at by multiplying thirty (30} times the
greater of the current federal minimum wage {$7.25" per hour. or $217.50°}, the New York State minimum wage ($9.70™" per hour, or $291.00
1. the New York City minimum wage for employers with 10 or less employees ($10.50"* per hour, or $315.00"*); the New York City minimum
wage for employers with more than 10 employees ($11.00"* per hour, or $330.00°"). the minimum wage for Nassau, Suffolk and
‘Nestchester Counties ($10.00°°*. per hour. or $300.00°°"). the New York State minimum wage for fast food employees ouiside New York
Zitv ($10.75# per hour, or $322.50%), or the New York State minimum wage for fast food employees located in New York City ($12.50 per
aour. or $375.004)

D. It deductions are being made from a judgment debtor's earnings under any orders for alimony, support or mainienance for family mem_bers or
former spouses, and those deductions equal or exceed twenty-five percent (25%) of the judgment debtor's disposable eamings, no deduction can
be made from the judgment debtor’s earnings under this income execution.

€. It deductions are being made from a judgment debtor's earnings under any orders for alimony. support or maintenance for tamily members of
former spouses, and those deductions are less than twenty-five (25%) of the judgment debtor's disposable earnings, deductions may be made
‘rom the judgment debtor's eamings under the income execution. However, the amount arrived at by adding the deductions from earnings made
under this execution to the deductions made under any orders for alimony, support or maintenance for family members or former spouses cannot
2xceed twenty-five percent (25%) of the judgment debtor's disposable earnings.

NOTE: Nothing in this notice limits the proportion or amount which may be deducted under any order for alimeny, support or maintenance for
family members or former spouses.

i. Explanation of limitations

Definitions

visposable Eamings-Disposable earnings are that pant of an individual's earnings left afier deducling those amounts that are required by law 1o
ta withheld (for axample, taxes. social secuiity and unemployment insurance, but not deductions for union dues, insurance pians, eic.j.

Gross Income-Gross income is salary, wages or other income including any and all overtime earnings, commissions and income from trusts

befare any deductions are made from such income. -
‘Hustrations regarding earnings:

it disposable earnings is: Amount {o pay or deduct from earnings under this income execution is:

{a) less than 30 times the greater of the federal ($217.50") or No payment or deduction allowed.

state minimum wage ($291.00/315.00/$330.00°* or $300.00"*"
or $322.504/ $375.00") or less.

{b) more than 30 time the greater of the federal ($217.50°) or The lesser of: The excess over 30 times the greater of the {ederal

State minimum wage ($291.00/$315.00/$330.00.*") or minimum wage ($217.50°) ot the state minimume wage of ($291.00(3300.00
***\ or $322.50# /$375.007) and less than 40 times $315.00/5330.00°°) or ($300.00."**) or ($322.50# / $375.00%) in

ihe federal or (5400.00°"*) or ($430.004 / $500.00%) disposable earnings. or 10% of gross income.

ic) 40 times the greater of the federal ($290.00*) or state The lesser of: 25% ot disposable earnings or 10°% of

munimum wage ($388.00/$420.00 / $440.00°"} or {$400.00°"") Or more gross income.
2r (5430.00# or $500.00M.

#1. Notice: You may be able 1o challenge this income execution through the procedures provided in CPLR §5231(i) and CPLR §5240.
i you think that the amount of your income being deducted under this income execution exceeds the amount permitted by state or federal law.
you should act promptly because the money will be applied to the judgment. If you claim that the amount of your income being deducted under
this income execution exceeds the amount permitted by state or lederal law, you should contact your employer or other person paying yous
-ncome.  Funher. YOU MAY CONSULT AN ATTORNEY. INCLUDING LEGAL AID IF YOU QUALIFY. New York State law provides two
orocedures through which an income execution can be challenged:

CPLR §5230. Pursuant to subdivision. (1) of section fifty-two hundred five of this article, {$2.750.00) Two Thousand Seven Hundred Fifty
Dollars of an account containing direct deposit or electronic payments reasonably identifiable as statutorily exempt payments. as defined in
paragraph two of subdivision (i) of section fifty-two hundred five of this article, is exempt from execution and that the gamishee cannot levy upon
or restrain ($2,750.00) Two Thousand Seven Hundred Fifty Dollars in such an account. An execution notice shall likewise state that pursuant o
subdivision (i) of section fifty-two hundred twenty-two of this article. an execution st:all not apply to an amount equal to or less than ninety percent
of the greater of twe hundred forty times the federa! minimum hourly wage prescribed in the Fair Labor Standards Act of 1928 or twe hundred
forty times the state munimum hourly wage prescribed in section six hundred fitty-two of the labor law as in effect at the time the earnings ase
payable, except such part as a court determines to be unnecessary for the reasonable requirements of the judgment deblor and his or her
dependents.

CPLR §5231(i) Modification. At any time. the judgment deblor may make a motion to a court for an order modifying an income
execution,

CPLR §5240 Modification or protective order; supervision of enforcement. At any time, the judgment debtor may make a motion to
a court for an order denving. limiting. conditioning, regulating. extending or modifying the use of any post-judgment enforcement procedure
including the use of income executions
' Based upon $7.25 federal mmimum wage effective July 24, 2009.
- Based upon $9.70 New York State minimum wage; or $10.50 New York City minimum wage with 10 or less employees and
$11.00 for more than 10 employyes effective December 31, 2016.
Based upon $10.00 minimum wage for emploers in Nassau, Suffolk and Westchester counties. effective December 31. 2016
# Based upon $10.75 New York State minimum wage for fast food employees effective December 31, 2016.
~ Based upon $12.50 New York State minimum for fast food employees located in New York City effective December 31, 2016

. Return (for Sheritf's or Marshal's use only)
0 Fully satisfied 20 D Unsatisfied
0 Partially satisfied 20 . S
O Because | was unable to find the Gamishee (the Employer) within my jurisdiction | returned this Income Execution to Judgment Creditor's
Attorney on 20
Date and time received: O Marshall. Cityof .................
23 Sheriff. County of ...................

546113-1/46212011617 10400/ X XXXXXXXXXXX0400/RR10
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COUNTY OF SUFFOLK

SHERIFF'S OFFICE VINCENT F. DeMARCO
CIVIL BUREAU SHERIFF
Julie Somerset January 26. 2017

17 Qak Place
Selden. NY 11784

File #: 2-17001198
Rushmore Recoveries X LLC
vs.
Julie Somersel

The enclosed income execution directs you to pay the Sheriff’ 10% ol vour gross income. Your tirst payment is due in this
oifice no later than 20 days from the date indicated above and pay ments must continue uninterrupted until the total
judgment plus statutory fees and interest have been paid. Your payment MUST have the above referenced File # clearly
written on your payment or it will be returned to you and your employer may be served and directed 1o make deductions
from vour salary.

Execution $1.219.61
Interest to January 26. 2017 S1.248.31
Poundage on Execution S12525
Statutory Fees $37.00
*Balance Due S2.630.17

<Interest and poundage on interest is from 1/26/17 only, additional intercst will accrue daify until paid in full.
NOTE : Limitations on the amount to be remitied - the lesserof A or B:

A. Under N.Y.S. Law (CPLR 5231) 10% of gross income.

B. Under federal law (15 U.S.C 1671 ET SEQ.) the amount that may be paid may not exceed (1) 25% of
disposable eanings for the pay period. or (2) the amount by which disposable eamings for the pay period exceeds 30 times
‘he federal minimum hourly wage. Disposable earnings are that part of earnings Jelt after deduction amounts required by
jaw 10 be withheld ti.e.. taxes. social security. unemploy ment insurance. but not deductions for union dues. insurance plans.
2AC. L
Paviments are to be made weekly or bi-weekly, according tc your pay period. by centified check or money order payable to
the Sherift of Suffolk County. 360 Yaphank Avenue. Suite 1A. Yaphank. New York 11980. Please include copies of one
month’s worth of current consecutive paystubs with vour first payment, Please identify your remittance by W riting the

above indicated Sheriff's file number in the upper left corner. Please print your name and current address (PERSONAL
INCERTIFIED CHECKS ARE NOT ACCEPTABLE).

The Sheriff is the onfy party mandated to enforce payment in this matter and cannot make payment arraggements other
than cited above. You may call 832-5623 for further information and if vou are making child support or alimony
nayvments.

IMPORTANT: Please note that the law provides that upon your failure to remit. your employer will be served with income
execution papers and thercafter shall be required 10 make the deductions and remittance to the Sheritt.

SUFFOLK COUNTY SHERIFF
CIVIL BUREAU

360 Yaphank Avenue - Suie 1A
Yaphank. New York 1198
16311 832-5600
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EDNY Revision 12/2011
CERTIFICATION OF ARBITRATION ELIGIBILITY

Local Arbitration Rule 83.10 provides that with certain exceptions, actions seeking money damages only in an amount not in excess of $150,000,
exclusive of interest and costs, are eligible for compulsory arbitration. The amount of damages is presumed to be below the threshold amount unless a
certification to the contrary is filed.

1, Jaseph mauro , counsel for Plaintif , do hereby certify that the above captioned civil action is
ineligible for compulsory arbitration for the following reason(s):

monetary damages sought are in excess of $150,000, exclusive of interest and costs,

the complaint seeks injunctive relief,
the matter is otherwise ineligible for the following reason Case is a class action. An Arbitrator can't

certify a class.Damages may exceed $150,000 depending on Defendant's net worth.
DISCLOSURE STATEMENT - FEDERAL RULES CIVIL PROCEDURE 7.1

Identify any parent corporation and any publicly held corporation that owns 10% or more or its stocks:
None

RELATED CASE STATEMENT (Section VIII on the Front of this Form)

Please list all cases that are arguably related pursuant to Division of Business Rule 50.3.1 in Section VIII on the front of this form. Rule 50.3.1 (a)
provides that “A civil case is “related” to another civil case for purposes of this guideline when, because of the similarity of facts and legal issues or
because the cases arise from the same transactions or events, a substantial saving of judicial resources is likely to result from assigning both cases to the
same judge and magistrate judge.” Rule 50.3.1 (b) provides that * A civil case shall not be deemed “related” to another civil case merely because the civil
case; (A) involves identical legal issues, or (B) involves the same parties.” Rule 50.3.1 (c) further provides that “Presumptively, and subject to the power
of a judge to determine otherwise pursuant to paragraph (d), civil cases shall not be deemed to be “related” unless both cases are still pending before the
court.”

NY-E DIVISION OF BUSINESS RULE 50.1(d)}(2)

1.) Is the civil action being filed in the Eastern District removed from a New York State Court located in Nassau or Suffolk
County: No

2) If you answered “no” above:
a) Did the events or omissions giving rise to the claim or claims, or a substantial part thereof, occur in Nassau or Suffolk
County? Yes

b) Did the events of omissions giving rise to the claim or claims, or a substantial part thereof, occur in the Eastern
District? Yes

If your answer to question 2 (b) is “No,” does the defendant (or a majority of the defendants, if there is more than one) reside in Nassau or

Suffolk County, or, in an interpleader action, does the claimant (or a majority of the claimants, if there is more than one) reside in Nassau

or Suffolk County?
(Note: A corporation shall be considered a resident of the County in which it has the most significant contacts).

BAR ADMISSION

1 am currently admitted in the Eastern District of New York and currently a member in good standing of the bar of this court.
Yes O Ne

Are you currently the subject of any disciplinary action (s) in this or any other state or federal court?
Yes  (If yes, please explain) B No

I certify the amirmaﬁon provided above.
Signature:
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This complaint is part of ClassAction.org's searchable class action lawsuit database and can be found in this
post: Alleged Improper ‘Income Execution’ Notice Bites Stephen Einstein & Associatesin Class Action
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